College of William & Mary Law School William & Mary Law School Scholarship Repository

1976–1985: William B. Spong, Jr.

Law School Deans

1979

Law School Passed Trials of War, Funds, Public Apathy

Wilford Kale

Repository Citation

Kale, Wilford, "Law School Passed Trials of War, Funds, Public Apathy" (1979). 1976–1985: William B. Spong, Jr. 20. https://scholarship.law.wm.edu/wspong/20

 $Copyright\ c\ 1979\ by\ the\ authors.\ This\ article\ is\ brought\ to\ you\ by\ the\ William\ \&\ Mary\ Law\ School\ Scholarship\ Repository.$ https://scholarship.law.wm.edu/wspong

Sunday, April 29, 1979





Marshall-Wythe Law School Moved Into Former Library Building in 1967



John Marshall: Student of Wythe

Law School Passed Trials Of War, Funds, Public Apathy

By Wilford Kale

By Wilford Kale
Times Disynth Stork Storf
WILLIAMS IN the Store
WILLIAMS IN the Store
WILLIAMS IN the Store
WILLIAMS IN the Store
Williams In the Williams
W

Woodbridge.

Like William and Mary itself, the study of law has suffered the trials and tribulations of war, a lack of finances and public apathy.

YESTERDAY, HOWEVER, state officials, national legal authorities and prominent jurists. Inclinding U.S. prominent jurists. Inclinding U.S. prominent jurists. Inclinding U.S. Burger and Virginia Supreme Court Chief Surists. As a superior of the property of the prominent of the prominent of William and Mary, gathered on campus of William and Mary, gathered on campus School of Law. Day 1979 with a correstone-laying for the Smillion-plus new buildings and the observance of the accordance of the control of the contro YESTERDAY, HOWEVER, state of-

attending William and Mary from 1760-62, Jefferson began a five-year study of the law with Wythe.

JEFFERSON'S ASSOCIATION and

JEFFERSON'S ASSOCIATION and friendship with Wythe lasted a lifetime, and it was that admiration that Jefferson had for his meator that materialized Jefferson had for his meator that materialized Jegars later. In his saudolography, Jefferson had for his mentor that materialized Jegars later, in his saudolography, Jefferson that the later of t

course, the nation's first professorship of law.
Less than a month later, on Dec. 28, the same Board of Visitors approved Wythe, Jefferson's friend and teacher whom he styled as the "American Aristides," as law professor. Wythe was among those Virginians who, with Jefferson three young and the style of the professor in the style of t

IN ACCEPTING THE POSITION

ation. Wuthe's chair of law was second in th

Tucker was to continue Wythe's signifi-cant contributions with one of his own— an American edition of Blackstone's 'Commentaries,' which would become an invaluable reference for students and lawyers alke. In 1792, under Tucker, William and Mary became the first college to require a bachelor of arts degree as a condition for a law degree.

bachelor of arts degree as a condition for a law degree.
Tucker held the professorship until 1804 and was followed by William Nelson, Robert Nelson, James semple and in 1833 by Beverly Tucker. Historians say that Beverly Tucker was an "extreme advacted of states" rights and a disciple of the old order. His published letters on pleading are ascentrainings as noved.

oTHER EARLY PROFESSORS of law at William and Mary were Judge Scar-burgh, Lucian Minor and Charles Morris, who acted in the capacity until 1891-62, when Virginia and the college became embroiled in the Civil War.

Theodore S. Cox, dean of the Department of Jurisprudence in BCB, wrose then a bright account of the raditions of law at the college. He noted that the study of which are the college. He noted that the study of which are the college. He noted that the subject of the study of the study and the season of the study and the season of the sea

til 1924.

Col. Benjamin S. Ewell, college president, who reopened William and Mary after the war, found it impossible to

Continued on Page 2, Col. 1



Naming of William B. Spong as Dean Boosted Prestige

Law School Passed Trials Of War, Finances, Apathy

Continued From First Page

retain a complete faculty. At that time, Ewell granted law professor Morris a leave of absence.

(cave of absence.

Ox, in his review of the school 37 years ago, contended that the re-establishment of the teaching of the water hills and Mary in 1921-22. "appears merely to have been the revival of a subject, the toaching of which had been in abeyance as a result of this leave of absence, which had continued with the years."

with the years."

Judge Oscar Lane Shewmake was the person primarily responsible for the revival of the study of law here. Then-president J.A. C. Chandler encouraged Shewmake, who was known for his encyclopedic knowledge and interests beyond the radiments of law. Like Wythe, Shewmake Sperionality fouched responses in this young students.

There were eight students in Shewmake's first class — including retired Federal District Judge Ted Daiton, father of Gov. John N. Dalton — and later all eight passed the state bar examination, a testimony to Shewmake's teaching skills.

According to those students, Shewmake taught four interrelated courses: English constitutional history and English constitutional law, in one semester, and American constitutional history and American constitutional law in the second semester.

THE REVIVAL of the law program was not without significant problems.

Almost from the outset of the Chandler-Shewmake efforts, there was opposition from some alumni who feared the law program would be an inferior one, "thus failing to perform a law school's duty to society and tend, thereby, to bring the college into disrepute," Cox wrote.

The opposition culminated in the mid-1920s with the introduction of a bill in the House of Delegates to abolish the law school. The bill was defeated, largely for economic reasons, after it was pointed out that the state would lose more than \$100, 000 in endowments to William and Mary If the law school were abandoned.

we saw actions were adandoned.
While the bill ided, a report on the law school was authorized by the governor. The report, according to Cox, finally questioned "the maintenance of a law school among the state-supported in-stitutions when the facilities at the University of Virginia produced instructions costs on a remarkably smaller scale."

Cox said he filed a report in January, 1936 with college officials that disputed the governor's study, In 1838. Be Board of the governor's study, In 1838. Be Board of the Cox, who said he appeared before the committee in September, 1938, said he heard "nothing further until the afternoon of May 27th, when I was notlined by the (college) president that the board had abolished the law degree."

aboismed the law ungree.

A Richmond Times-Dispatch headline on Sunday, May 28, 1939, read: "Law Degree Discontinued at W. &M." and another paper's headline cried "No More Degrees in Law at W. &M., Soord Determined." The Board of Visitor's bad decreed that after the 1939-49 session there would be no more degrees.

THE VISITORS HAD DECIDED to discontinue instruction in the more technical fields of law and to merge the School of Jurisprudence with the Marshall-Wythe School of Government and Citizenship.r



Prof. St. George Tucker

The end of degrees was determined, newspaper accounts said, because of the duplication of efforts between William and Mary and the University of Virginia.

SHOUTS OF DISMAY and even contempt for the Board of Visitors rose from alumni across the state. Newspapers were bombarded with letters to the editor, and the board was urged to rescind its action.

Under what was called "intense pressure." the visitors returned to Williamsburg on June 2 and decided to keep the law school and to develop it "in keeping with the traditions and prestige" of the college.

About 10 years later, the board authorized the law school to take the name Marshall-Wythe, after the first professor of law, and John Marshall, the famous U.S. chief justice and Wythe's most Illustrious student.

lustrious student.

In 1954, the law school had big plans.
Not only was the school planning to move into more spacious quarters in Bryan Hall, a men's dormlory complex, but on Sept. 53, 1954, the law school planned day-long festivities bonoring Marshall, withe and Blackstone and invited U.S. Chief Justice Earl Warren and Lord Goddard, the Lord Chief Justice of England, to attend.

INVITATIONS WERE ALSO extended to a host of state officials to Join the national and international logal digitizaries. Earlier in the year, however, the U.S. Supreme Court, headed by Warren, had handed down its famous Borova is Borova i

Gov. Thomas Stanley declined the invitation, joined by many other state leaders and officials. Lt. Gov. A.E.S. Stephens, a William and Mary alumnus and graduate of that first Shewmake law class, agreed to attend and represent Stanley. The ceremonies went on as planned.

ned. In 1982 Dean Woodbridge, who had come to the college in 1827 as a professor of law and who had served the law school as dean since 1842, announced he would step down. Woodbridge had brought the law school from relative obscurity in the early 1940s into an eraof competition with other small law schools across the country.

Anowas a cuest the colonity.

Known as academ more than as adean, Woodbridge was cited in 1550 by Life magazine as one of the eight best teachers in American colleges and universities. Woodbridge's law notes on the state bar examination were legendary, and its said that scores of students were able to pass the requirements because of his cram course and notes.

The school continued to grow and in 1967 moved into larger quarters in the vacant library building and it was renamed the Marshall-Wythe building. Eurollment and, more important, the law library, began to increase again.

ABOUT THE SAME TIME William and Mary officials were first thinking (in the early 1970s) about a larger facility, state officials were working hard to bring the headquarters of the National Center for State Courts to Virginia, specifically Williamsburg.

Williamsburg.

In 1973, when new building first began in earnest, William and Mary had 450 full-time law students, the current number. A new building would allow the enrollment to move to 600 students, or 200 full-time students per year and would allow the consolidation of all the law library books in one building.

The saga of the law school expansion was tabled briefly in May and June, 1974, when the Jeroyd X. Greene controversy grabbed state media attention.

Greene, who now is called Sa'ad el-Amin, is a black Richmond lawyer who was proposed for a visiting associate professorship of law, Richmond State Sen. Edward E. Willey indicated that state financial aid might be in jeopardy if the school hired el-Amin.

the school hired el-Amin. El-Amin, an activist attorney, was considered by some as not appropriate to teach such legal techniques when, at the time, he was involved in several contempt of court proceedings. In the end, Dr. Thomas A. Graves Jr., college president, recommended to the Board of Visitors that he not be appointed. The board agreed.

In the meantime, the law school was to face another crisis—this one of major importance—the subject of accreditation.

The American Bar Association told the college that II major changes were the made in the law school—primarily better on made in the law school—primarily better callities and alter part in bary accreditation could be withdrawn. Marshall-Wythe sac icted for "continued madequacy" of faculty salaries, "which are below the second of the control of the control of the control of the college of the control of the control of the control of the control of the country."

ALL THE WHILE, college officials were working with the state to get funding for a new building. Marshall-Wythe got a substantial boost in prestige in November, 1973, when former U.S. Sen. William B. Spong Jr. was named dean.

Even before Spong joined the faculty in July, 1976, he was working on support for the new building and trying to avoid sanctions from the ABA. Both goals were accomplished within a year.

On July 7, 1976, the ABA told the college it had retained its law school accreditation, but that a new building for the school was needed to completely satisfy ABA requirements. The other problems of salaries, staffing and library had been ironed out by college officials.

The 1977 session of the General Assembly approved funds for the new building, but not through general appropriations. It was determined that the building would be part of a statewide \$125 million bond issue. Earlier in 1976, the state had allocated funds for site preparation for the building, and the nation that he was chosen to be beginning to enjoy.